
 
 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 
Date: 
 

Wednesday 20 March 2019 

Time: 
 

5.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Annexe, Crosfield Hall, Broadwater Road, Romsey, Hampshire, 
SO51 8GL 

 
 
For further information or enquiries please contact: 
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368014 
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk 
 

Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council, 

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, 
Andover, Hampshire, 

SP10 3AJ 
www.testvalley.gov.uk 

 
 
 
The recommendations contained in the Agenda are made by the Officers and these 
recommendations may or may not be accepted by the Committee. 
 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME 

If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting. 

 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


 
 

 
Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
MEMBER  WARD 
 
Councillor I Jeffrey (Chairman) Dun Valley; 

Councillor J Cockaday (Vice-Chairman) Andover (St Mary's); 

Councillor G Bailey Blackwater; 

Councillor D Baverstock Romsey (Cupernham); 

Councillor C Borg-Neal Andover (Harroway); 

Councillor P Boulton Broughton & Stockbridge; 

Councillor C Dowden North Baddesley; 

Councillor B Few Brown Amport; 

Councillor A Finlay Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams; 

Councillor K Hamilton Andover (Harroway); 

Councillor I Hibberd Romsey Extra; 

Councillor P Hurst Romsey (Tadburn); 

Councillor J Lovell Andover (Winton); 

Councillor P Mutton Penton Bellinger; 

Councillor J Neal Andover (Millway); 

Councillor T Preston Andover (Alamein); 

Councillor I Richards Romsey (Abbey); 

Councillor C Thom Valley Park; 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019



 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
Wednesday 20 March 2019 

 
AGENDA 

 
The order of these items may change as a result of members 

of the public wishing to speak 
 
 
 

1   Apologies 
 

 

2   Public Participation 
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4   Urgent Items 
 

 

5   Minutes of the meeting held on 20 February 2019 
 

 

6   Call in Items 
 

 

7   Urgent decisions taken since last meeting 
 

 

8   Updates on Panels 
 

 

 Lead Members to update the Committee on the progress 
of their Panels (10 mins) 
 

 

9   Opportunities for Funding Drug Prevention Education 
Programmes 
 

5 - 12 

 To report back on ‘Opportunities for funding drug 
prevention education programmes (20 minutes) 
 

 

10   Corporate Plan 2019-2023 
 

13 - 37 

 To consider the draft proposed Corporate Plan for 2019-
2023 (20 minutes) 
 
 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019



 
 

11   Report of the Task and Finish panel - Car Parking 
 

38 - 47 

 To consider the outcome of the review into car parking (20 
minutes) 
 

 

12   Work Programme Report 
 

48 - 63 

 To enable Members to keep the Committee’s future work 
programme under review (15 minutes) 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019



  Opportunities for Funding Drug Prevention Education 
Programmes 

 
Report of the Community Development Manager (on behalf of the Test Valley 
Partnership) 

 
Recommended: 
 
That no further action be taken at this stage. 
 

SUMMARY:  

 Schools currently operate a wide range of drug prevention education 
provision. 

 Specific and generic funding opportunities exist for additional drug prevention 
and education services where required.  

 Information on further opportunities for funding and support to be provided to 
schools via the Community Safety Management Group and its partners 
networks.  

 

1 Context:  

1.1  At the OCSOM meeting on17 October 2018, the Community Development 
Manager (on behalf of the Test Valley Partnership), was tasked to explore 
‘Opportunities for funding drug prevention education programmes’. The 
information in this report has been compiled with, and approved by, the Test 
Valley Community Safety Management Group (CSMG).  

2 Current Work in Schools:  

2.1  Information has been provided through the Test Valley Partnership on current 
drug prevention delivery in schools. From this it is clear that drug prevention 
education is being delivered schools in the district. These include:  

 PSHE, drama classes and specific tutor periods dedicated to coverage 
of drug and substance misuse education.  

 Formal classes and qualifications studied. 

 Pastoral and individual support for those thought at risk, or who are 
engaging with drugs.  

 Working with, and signposting to, commissioned and other support 
services, such as Catch 22, No Limits and YCP. 

 The promotion of campaigns such as ‘Talk to Frank’, ’SMILE’ etc., at 
parents evenings, assemblies and on-line.  

 Engagement of outside trainers and consultants for specific events, 
including Stacey Miller and Paul Hannaford. 

 Direct working with police on prevention education. 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 5

ITEM 9



 Referrals to the Test Valley Partnerships ‘ICE’ [Intervention; 
Communication; Education] programme.  

 In addition, most schools have also developed a specific drugs and 
illegal substances policy.  

3  Funding Opportunities:  

3.1  A variety of local and national funding opportunities exist to which school and 
third sector organisations can apply, dependant upon their status, to introduce 
additional drug prevention sessions.  

3.2  These grant providers offer funding either specifically for the purpose of drug 
education and advice, or via more general qualifying criteria, access portals 
and support. Details of these are set out in Appendix A. CSMG partners will 
monitor and advise schools of future grant availability as they become known 
and update the list accordingly.  

3.3  This information will be made available to representatives of schools and other 
relevant partners through the Community Safety Management Group and 
partners. However, the Community Safety Management Group is not able to 
endorse or recommend any of these independent funding bodies and 
ultimately it is the decision of each school whether to apply for any of the 
funding available. 

3.4  Where schools do decide to submit appropriate applications for funding the 
Community Safety Management Group could commit to support them and in 
particular would support coordinated and complementary funding bids across 
the borough. 

4.  Conclusion:  

4.1  Overall, there is an extensive drugs education programme developed within 
schools locally, which reflects the needs of their pupils. There are also a 
diverse range of potential funding streams locally and nationally to support 
education and intervention projects.  

4.2 There remains a need for continued partner engagement as circumstances 
and issues change; and to access relevant information and potentially funding 
to address these. The Test Valley Partnership, though the Community Safety 
Management Group, has committed to support schools with information, 
advice and in access to funding, alongside projects such as ‘ICE’, to ensure 
ongoing relevant information on issues and options is maintained.  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 6



 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 

None. 

 

Confidentiality 

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public. 

No of Annexes: 1 

Author: Andrew Pilley Ext: 8640 

File Ref:  

Report to: OSCOM Date: 20 March 2019 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 7



Appendix A: 

National Drug Education / Prevention Specific Grant and Funding Programmes / Information – For 

Schools / Community Groups:  

 Big Lottery - www.biglotteryfund.org.uk/funding/grants/0030059213 

An award has been made with precedent for drug awareness support: ‘Creating Awareness 

on Drugs and Alcohol misuse amongst Croydon youths’ (October 2010). 

 7 Stars Foundation - https://the7starsfoundation.co.uk/projects-funded/addiction 

The grant programme provides funding to support recovery from addiction of any kind. 

Those 16 year old and under who consider themselves yourself living with addiction, or  

organisations assisting those facing addiction, may apply for funding, as per grant policies. 

 Gov.uk - Government funds school resource for drug and alcohol prevention - 

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-funds-school-resource-for-drug-and-

alcohol-prevention 

Public Health England has announced new funding to expand Mentor UK’s ADEPIS resource 

into more schools and community settings. 

 The Grants Hub: Drugs and Addictions - http://www.govgrantshub.uk/non-profit-

grant/drugs-addictions/ 

National Generic Grant and Funding Programmes which may be relevant to Drug Awareness, 

Education and Prevention Bids:   

 Children in Need – 

http://www.bbc.co.uk/programmes/articles/5ysD3mLQYYRPRLNZ032LjM7/grants 

Various grant stream options including –  

Being Positively Empowered – to support when children and young people can direct or 

manage their lives, or aspects of them. They can make independent decisions, display 

appropriate behaviour, are motivated, express themselves and engage with activities and 

matters that affect them. 

Having Positive Relationships – to support when children have strong, positive and affirming 

relationships, starting with their family, carers and friends. Having trusted peers and adults 

in their lives also helps overcome loneliness and provide alternatives to disruptive and 

harmful pathways or activities. Children also benefit from having positive relationships with 

social and community groups relevant to them. 

Being Emotionally Well – to support when children can manage their feelings and make 

sense of traumatic or emotional setbacks. For some, it is essential that they are able to 

manage mental ill health that can manifest itself in such things as self-harming, depression 

or suicidal thoughts. For many, emotional well-being is built on having fun, getting a break 

and experiencing freedom from day-to-day challenges. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 8

http://www.biglotteryfund.org.uk/funding/grants/0030059213
https://the7starsfoundation.co.uk/projects-funded/addiction
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-funds-school-resource-for-drug-and-alcohol-prevention
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-funds-school-resource-for-drug-and-alcohol-prevention
http://www.govgrantshub.uk/non-profit-grant/drugs-addictions/
http://www.govgrantshub.uk/non-profit-grant/drugs-addictions/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/programmes/articles/5ysD3mLQYYRPRLNZ032LjM7/grants


Having Strong Self-Belief – to support when children have a positive sense of who they are 

and what they can achieve. Self-belief can be a combination of factors including self-esteem, 

confidence, pride in accomplishments, a sense of identity and having positive expectations 

for your future life. 

 My Community – https://mycommunity.org.uk/funding-

options/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIjZXOiOnT3gIVhkPTCh0sHgGJEAAYASAAEgJSZPD_BwE 

This provides a number of different grants available for communities, and also provides a list 

of some key search engines to keep up to date with all the latest grants available 

 Directory of Social Change - The Guide to Educational Grants 2018/19 –  

https://www.dsc.org.uk/publication/guide-educational-grants-2018-

19/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIoaGClufT3gIV4TLTCh0DtQOYEAAYAiAAEgIphvD_BwE  

The Guide to Educational Grants contains over 1,100 sources of non-statutory financial help 

for people in education, offering a total of more than £55 million each year to the people 

you work with. 

 Funding Central - https://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/default.aspx 

Funding Central hub has access to over 4,000 sources. Subscription is required: it’s free for 

organisations with an annual income under £100,000 (£100 for organisations over £100,000) 

 Esmee Fairburn Trust – Children and Young People Fund - 

www.esmeefairbairn.org.uk/children-and-young-people 

EFT support work that: Identifies and supports previously overlooked needs of children and 

young people, and Creates long-term change for young people who face challenges, and 

Contributes to a shift in the way the public or voluntary sector supports young people. 

 Tesco - Bags of Help fund - 

www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/pages/Category/boh-grant-for-

project-tes 

The types of projects funded will be very broad and will cover the direct costs needed to 

deliver the project. 

 Tudor Trust – http://tudortrust.org.uk/what-we-do 

Tudor makes grants, and provides other types of support, to voluntary and community 

groups working in any part of the UK. They particularly want to help smaller, community-led 

organisations that work directly with people who are at the margins of society: organisations 

that support positive changes in people’s lives and in their communities.  

Royal Bank Of Scotland Skills and Opportunities Fund – 

http://skillsandopportunitiesfund.rbs.com/ 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 9

https://mycommunity.org.uk/funding-options/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIjZXOiOnT3gIVhkPTCh0sHgGJEAAYASAAEgJSZPD_BwE
https://mycommunity.org.uk/funding-options/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIjZXOiOnT3gIVhkPTCh0sHgGJEAAYASAAEgJSZPD_BwE
https://www.dsc.org.uk/publication/guide-educational-grants-2018-19/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIoaGClufT3gIV4TLTCh0DtQOYEAAYAiAAEgIphvD_BwE
https://www.dsc.org.uk/publication/guide-educational-grants-2018-19/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIoaGClufT3gIV4TLTCh0DtQOYEAAYAiAAEgIphvD_BwE
https://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/default.aspx
http://www.esmeefairbairn.org.uk/children-and-young-people
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/pages/Category/boh-grant-for-project-tes
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/pages/Category/boh-grant-for-project-tes
http://tudortrust.org.uk/what-we-do
http://skillsandopportunitiesfund.rbs.com/


RBS Funds projects in charities, social enterprises, community groups, state-funded schools 

and colleges across the UK. The purpose is to support organisations that help people in 

disadvantaged communities develop, create or access the skills and opportunities they need 

to help themselves; skills that will enable them to get into work or start a business, now or in 

the future. 

Local Generic Grant and Funding Programmes / Information. 

 OPCC Hampshire - https://www.hampshire-pcc.gov.uk/ 

2019/20 Priority areas - Crime Prevention; Cyber Behaviours; Domestic Abuse; Hate Crime; 

Hidden Harm; Reducing Reoffending; Restorative Approaches; Sexual Crime; Supporting 

Victims; Youth Diversion. 

 TVBC – ‘Test Valley 4 Community’ - 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/communityandleisure/workingwithcommunities/communityg

rants/test-valley-4-community-funding-por 

The Test Valley 4 Community is an online hub of grants and funding information.  It has a 

user friendly website that allows you to quickly and easily filter through hundreds of grant 

schemes and find suitable funding. 

 TVBC – Cllr Community Grants – 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/communityandleisure/workingwithcommunities/communityg

rants/test-valley-borough-councillors-community-grant 

Can fund up to £1000 / 2/3rds of project costs for community led initiatives meeting local 

member priorities.  

 HCC – Cllr Grants  - Up to £1000 - www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/county-councillor-grants.htm 

Groups and organisations can apply for funding for both revenue (one-off) and minor capital 

projects 

 HCC - Children’s Services Grants - www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/childrens-services-grants.htm 

Children's Services award grants to organisations that support young people. These could be 

specialist counselling services, supporting young carers, young people who are not in 

education, employment or training, services for traveller children and young people or 

support services for children and young people affected by domestic violence 

 HCC – Culture and Community Activity Grants – www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/ccbs-

grants/culture-community-activity-grants.htm 

The purpose of the Culture and Community Activity Grants is to provide general support to 

groups and organisations which encourage and provide opportunities for individuals and 

communities within Hampshire to participate in cultural, community-focused, and 

recreational activities. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 10

https://www.hampshire-pcc.gov.uk/
http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/communityandleisure/workingwithcommunities/communitygrants/test-valley-4-community-funding-por
http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/communityandleisure/workingwithcommunities/communitygrants/test-valley-4-community-funding-por
http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/communityandleisure/workingwithcommunities/communitygrants/test-valley-borough-councillors-community-grant
http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/communityandleisure/workingwithcommunities/communitygrants/test-valley-borough-councillors-community-grant
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/county-councillor-grants.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/childrens-services-grants.htm


 HCC - Community Investment Fund (over £5k). http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/ccbs-

grants/community-investment-fund.htm 

The Community Investment Fund supports community based organisations delivering 

services/projects/activities which support the priorities and outcomes of Hampshire County 

Council. Priority is given to organisations serving communities with high levels of multiple 

deprivation. 

• HCC Public Health Grants - http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/public-health-

grants.htm 

The Hampshire Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) is the countywide strategy to 

improve health and wellbeing of the people of Hampshire, informed by the Joint Strategic 

Needs Assessment (JSNA). It includes strategic priorities to be addressed across the county. 

• HCC - 0-19 Children’s Services Grant Programme 2019/20 - 

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/childrens-services-grants/childrens-services-grant.htm 

The 0-19 Children's Services Grant process supports projects delivered by the voluntary or 

not for profit sector operating within Hampshire. The key principles of the funding will be to:  

Support local priorities set by the 11 Local Children’s Partnerships or equivalent groups; 

Targeted at levels 2 & 3, on the Children’s Trust threshold chart; Support the delivery of the 

Hampshire Children and Young People’s Plan 2015-2018 

• Unity – Grants newsletter circulated monthly - 

http://www.bbc.co.uk/programmes/articles/5ysD3mLQYYRPRLNZ032LjM7/grants 

Local Information / Support Sources:  

 Catch 22 – https://www.catch-22.org.uk/services/hampshire-247-substance-misuse-

support/ 

 

Catch 22 are commissioned by HCC as the County-wide service offering specialist, targeted 

and family support for children and young people effected by substance misuse   

 

 Inclusion Recovery Hampshire – https://www.inclusion.org/inclusion-recovery-hampshire/ 

 

Inclusion Recovery Hampshire is part of the Hampshire drug and alcohol treatment and 

recovery service commissioned by Hampshire County Council.  The Hampshire drug and 

alcohol service is a partnership which is led by Inclusion with partners providing the different 

elements of the service. 

 

 HCC Safeguarding Children Board - 

www.hampshiresafeguardingchildrenboard.org.uk/training/ 

 

 NHS West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group - www.westhampshireccg.nhs.uk/ 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 11

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/ccbs-grants/community-investment-fund.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/ccbs-grants/community-investment-fund.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/public-health-grants.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/public-health-grants.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/childrens-services-grants/childrens-services-grant.htm
http://www.bbc.co.uk/programmes/articles/5ysD3mLQYYRPRLNZ032LjM7/grants
https://www.catch-22.org.uk/services/hampshire-247-substance-misuse-support/
https://www.catch-22.org.uk/services/hampshire-247-substance-misuse-support/
https://www.inclusion.org/inclusion-recovery-hampshire/
http://www.hampshiresafeguardingchildrenboard.org.uk/training/
http://www.westhampshireccg.nhs.uk/


Information Options for schools –  

 

Mentor (Government Funded) - Improving alcohol and drug prevention in schools. 

https://mentoruk.org.uk/policy/campaigns/quality-standards/ 

 

(Briefing paper - http://mentor-adepis.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/FINAL-What-

Works-Briefing-Paper-22.3.2017.pdf) 

 

DfE and ACPO drug advice for schools - 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_

data/file/270169/drug_advice_for_schools.pdf 

 

HM Government 2017 Drug Strategy -  

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_

data/file/628148/Drug_strategy_2017.PDF 

 

Hope.uk - Hope UK can develop bespoke training courses for any group who would like 

training in drugs and related issues. They also have two Open College Network accredited 

courses. https://www.hopeuk.org/ 

 

‘Talk to FRANK’ - FRANK helps you find out everything you might want to know about drugs 

(and some stuff you don't). For friendly, confidential advice, Talk to FRANK. 

https://www.talktofrank.com/ 

 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 12

https://mentoruk.org.uk/policy/campaigns/quality-standards/
http://mentor-adepis.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/FINAL-What-Works-Briefing-Paper-22.3.2017.pdf
http://mentor-adepis.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/FINAL-What-Works-Briefing-Paper-22.3.2017.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/270169/drug_advice_for_schools.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/270169/drug_advice_for_schools.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/628148/Drug_strategy_2017.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/628148/Drug_strategy_2017.PDF
https://www.hopeuk.org/
https://www.talktofrank.com/


  Corporate Plan 2019-2023 

 
Report of the Leader 
 

Recommended: 
  
That OSCOM endorse the draft proposed Corporate Plan for 2019-2023 ahead 
of its onward submission to Council. 

 

SUMMARY:  

 The Council’s current Corporate Plan “Investing in Test Valley” was approved in 
2015 and adopted for a four year period, to April 2019. A new draft proposed 
Corporate Plan has been developed for the next four years, 2019-2023. (Annex 
1) 

 The draft proposed Corporate Plan outlines the Council’s priorities for Test 
Valley for the four year cycle of the newly elected Council. The Corporate Plan 
provides a focus for the services provided by the Council, informing decisions 
and the allocation of resources. 

 The plan has been developed using a robust evidence base, taking into account 
the views of local residents, external influences and statistical bases.  

 

1 Introduction  

1.1 The Corporate Plan is a key corporate document, at the heart of the Council’s 
strategic policy framework. The Corporate Plan sets out key priorities and can 
be used in conjunction with the Local Plan and the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy to view the overarching strategic plans for the Council. 

1.2 The current Corporate Plan “Investing in Test Valley” ends in April 2019. A 
new draft proposed Corporate Plan has been developed for the Council cycle 
of 2019-2023. The Draft Proposed Corporate Plan is attached in Annex 1.  

1.3 The Corporate Plan is underpinned by the Corporate Action Plan (CAP), 
which runs for the lifetime of the Corporate Plan. The CAP details the annual 
progress of the Corporate Plan through the delivery of key projects. A new 
CAP is being developed alongside the Draft Proposed Corporate Plan; this 
will be considered by OSCOM in June 2019 ahead of its submission to 
Cabinet in July 2019. 

2 Background  

2.1 The draft proposed Corporate Plan has been developed using a robust 
evidence base, taking into account the views of local residents, external 
influences and statistical bases.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 13

ITEM 10



 

2.2 During the summer of 2018 councillors and officers attended more than 70 
events throughout the Borough, carrying out a consultation which has taken 
into account the views of 2000+ local residents. This also included a targeted 
approach to engage with residents who would normally be considered harder 
to reach.  More details on the Corporate Plan consultation can be found under 
Section 5.   

2.3 The draft proposed Corporate Plan has been developed in an inclusive way, 
with Councillors playing an active and collaborative role in its development. 
This has included a series of OSCOM roundtables over the last twelve 
months, enabling members to inform the priorities which come together in the 
draft proposed Plan.  

3 New Corporate Priorities 

3.1 The draft proposed Corporate Plan, Growing our Potential, builds on the 
priorities from the current Plan, “Investing in Test Valley”. Over the last four 
years resources and skills have been invested to achieve the best results for 
communities in Test Valley. This has developed real potential within our 
communities and the new plan seeks to grow this further, enabling people to 
play their part in improving quality of life across the Borough. 

3.2 The proposed strategic priorities for the new Corporate Plan have been 
developed with the ethos of Growing Our Potential. The strategic priorities are 
therefore entitled: 

Growing the potential of… 

 Town Centres to adapt and be attractive, vibrant and prosperous places 

 Communities to be empowered, connected and able to build upon their 
strengths 

 People to be able to live well and fulfil their aspirations 

 The Local Environment for current and future generations 

3.3 Throughout the draft proposed Corporate Plan there is a focus on the 
continuation and strengthening of place-based working within communities. 
The Council will continue to play an enabling role in supporting communities 
and local people as part of its community leadership function. The new Plan is 
also focused on a commitment to promote and secure inclusive growth, 
ensuring social and economic benefits are delivered for communities across 
the Borough. Our commitment to supporting a thriving economy sits at the 
very heart of this approach and is therefore reflected across all of the strategic 
priorities within the plan.   

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 14



 

4 Corporate Objectives and Priorities  

4.1 The Corporate Plan is a key corporate document at the heart of the Council’s 
strategic framework. The Corporate Plan sets out the medium term priorities 
and can be used in conjunction with the Local Plan and the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to view the overarching strategic plans for the Council. 

4.2 The draft proposed plan has been built on the strong foundations of the last 
plan. Elements of the previous document will live on in the new corporate 
priorities, recognising that much of what we are working on now will still 
require focus beyond a four year cycle. It is therefore anticipated that some of 
the current Corporate Action Plan (CAP) projects will be transferred from the 
existing CAP to the next one, following the adoption of the new plan.  

4.3 In developing the plan we have looked closely at internal and external 
influences on the Borough which may provide challenges or opportunities in 
the lifetime of the next Corporate Plan. These challenges include the 
changing nature of town centres and the role of the Council to encourage 
inclusive growth in our towns. In addition, there is the importance of sustaining 
vibrant rural communities and ensuring the right infrastructure and support is 
provided in these areas. Any decision made in the lifetime of the draft 
proposed Corporate Plan will also need to take account of preserving and 
enhancing natural assets for future generations. There are also uncertainties 
relating to the financial environment in which Local Government continues to 
operate within, so there will be an ongoing focus on sustaining financial 
resilience and delivering value for money.  

5 Consultations/Communications  

5.1 The consultation carried out for the development of the draft proposed 
Corporate Plan was robust, with the views of more than 2000 local people 
being gathered.  

5.2 Councillors and Officers attended more than 70 events throughout the 
summer of 2018 in communities across the Borough. As well as these events, 
the surveys were taken to individual community groups and meetings in order 
to get opinions from as wider range of people as possible. These events 
included attending a Nepalese community event, disability groups and mother 
and toddler groups. Attending events in this way meant that councillors were 
able to gain a greater level of detail in the responses given by the public, and 
therefore a greater understanding of resident’s priorities. 

5.3 As part of this consultation the Council sought to make the most of digital 
opportunities. Social media and an online survey tool were utilised to increase 
the reach to residents. On the homepage of the Test Valley Borough Council 
website there was a link to the Corporate Plan survey, enabling a greater 
reach than in previous years.  

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 15



5.4 The feedback from residents highlighted the importance of community spirit 
and activities being available in people’s local area. There was a strong focus 
on the changing nature of town centres and what people would like to see in 
them for the future. There was also an increased emphasis and a high value 
placed on the green spaces and recreational facilities people use, with 
residents keen to look after their surroundings and recycle more.  

6 Resource Implications  

6.1 There are no direct resource implications arising from this report.  

6.2 The draft proposed Corporate Plan, will guide the extent to which future 
resources are allocated to projects that form the Corporate Action Plan. 
Projects will be subject to the Council’s corporate project management 
framework which will assess and consider resourcing implications.  

7 Legal Implications 

7.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

8 Equality Issues  

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out in relation to the 
Corporate Plan and there are no positive or negative impacts that have been 
identified at this time. This conclusion has been reached as the Plan has been 
developed as part of an inclusive process which aims to service the entire 
community within Test Valley. This is in keeping with the Council’s objectives 
to be an organisation of excellence and improve the quality of life for all 
residents. 

8.2 The draft proposed Plan has also incorporated the Council’s Equalities 
Objectives. These updated objectives include strengthening the Council’s 
evidence-led methodology with a suite of engagement tools and processes to 
enable those with protected characteristics to have their views understood 
and shared. The Council’s approach to understanding the experience of 
service users will therefore be strengthened and embedded as practice, 
ensuring those with protected characteristics perspective is heard. 

8.3 The protected groups will continue to be considered throughout the lifetime of 
the Corporate Plan with the Corporate Action Plan providing an opportunity for 
all projects to go through an EQIA process as part of the council’s project 
management framework.  

9 Other Issues 

9.1 Sustainability and Addressing a Changing Climate – The Corporate Plan 
recognises the long term challenges and opportunities around preserving 
natural assets for future generations and balancing this with other aspirations 
and commitments such as economic growth. A specific strategic priority in 
relation to growing the potential of the environment for current and future 
generations has been identified to reflect this. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 16



 

9.2 The areas of work identified in the Corporate Plan and Corporate Action Plans 
will enable further consideration of sustainability and climate change matters, 
including supporting the objectives of the Council’s Sustainability Framework 
(2017). 

9.3 Wards/Communities Affected - All 

10 Conclusion and reasons for recommendation  

10.1 The draft proposed Corporate Plan outlines the Council’s vision and priorities 
for the Borough over the next four years of the newly elected council. It sets 
the direction and provides a focus for all the Council’s projects and services. 
As a result it directly informs decision making and allocation of resources 
across the Council. 

 

 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 

 

 

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public. 

 

No of Annexes: 1 File Ref:  

(Portfolio: Leader) Councillor Phil North  

Officer: James Moody  Ext: 8130 

Report to: OSCOM Date: 20 March 2019  

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 17



Test Valley Borough Council
Corporate Plan 2019 - 2023 Growing Our Potential

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 18



1

Growing Our Potential
We are an ambitious, innovative and 
optimistic council. Our new Corporate Plan, 
Growing Our Potential, is focused on how we 
can build upon the strengths of the Borough 
and its communities to improve the quality of 
life across Test Valley.

Our ambition to grow potential is underpinned by 
our investing approach which is more than just 
about money; it is about devoting our energy, skills 
and resources to the right things at the right time. 

The Borough is rich in community, environmental 
and economic assets. This is resulting in more 
people wanting to live and work in Test Valley. It 
is also at the heart of what makes the Borough an 
attractive place to visit and enjoy, whether it be the 
renowned high street of Stockbridge, the attractions 
of historic Romsey or Andover’s green spaces and 
state-of-the-art leisure facilities.  

Our culture of, and commitment to, place-based 
working continues to be at the centre of how we will 
do business through this new Plan. It is central to 
our making well-informed decisions which reflect the 
needs of all communities in order to ensure that not 
just those who shout the loudest are heard. 

This sets the context for our new strategic priorities, 
drawing upon our enabling and community 
leadership role. We aim to tackle the issues which 
are the most important for our communities, 

including businesses, in a way which builds upon 
their strengths. 

We are seeking to create, and sustain, successful, 
vibrant and prosperous communities within Test 
Valley. We are passionate about playing our part in 
delivering inclusive growth, so that our residents 
reap both social and economic benefits, resulting 
in greater access to opportunities and improved 
wellbeing. 

In developing this plan we have engaged with more 
than 2000 residents to gain an understanding 
of what is most important to them. Key issues, 
such as the future vitality of our towns and rural 
communities, the ability to access a decent home, 
a thriving local economy and looking after the 
local environment, all featured highly. We are also 
seeking to address some of the challenges our 
communities face, and respond to national trends 
such as the changing nature of town centres, tackling 
homelessness and exploring opportunities so that 
people can recycle more. 

Together these issues not surprisingly form the focus 
of our new strategic priorities so that we can grow 
the potential of: 

• �Town�Centres
• �Communities
• �People
• �Local�Environment�

We will deliver the priorities of this Plan through 
our Corporate Action Plan that will also run from 
2019 to 2023 and will be updated annually. This will 
show how we intend to make progress by detailing 
the specific actions that we will take forward against 
each of the priorities.

This plan has been built on the strong foundations of 
the previous plan. We recognise that much of what 
we are working on now will require focus beyond 
the next four years, just as elements of the previous 
plan continue to feature within our new strategic 
priorities. 

To deliver on those priorities we must retain a clear 
focus on maintaining financial resilience within 
a challenging climate for local government and 
crucially, ensuring value for money for our residents. 

We passionately believe that the potential of 
our communities and the Borough’s many other 
assets provide the springboard for delivering our 
shared ambitions. 

Welcome to Test Valley Borough Council’s 
Corporate Plan 2019-2023 

Cllr Phil North 
Leader of the Council

Roger Tetstall 
Chief Executive

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 19



2

What is the 
Corporate Plan?
The Corporate Plan outlines the Council’s 
vision and priorities for Test Valley over the 
next four years. It sets our direction and 
provides a focus for all of our activities and 
services. As a result, it informs decision 
making and the allocation of resources 
across the Council. 

The Corporate Plan in context
The Corporate Plan is an important link in the 
Council’s overall strategic planning framework. 
It describes the links between the key planning 
documents, which together will help us to deliver 
our priorities. 

We also use the Corporate Plan as our 
contribution towards meeting the long-term 
aspirations for the Borough that we share with 
our partner organisations, through the Test Valley 
Partnership. 

•  Reviews the financial 
implications of what we do 

•  Helps set the annual 
budget

•  Describes what 
our services will do 

•  How our staff play 
their part

CORPORATE  
PLAN

PEoPLE� 
STraTEgy

LoCaL 
PLaN

•  Sets planning policy

•  Creates the conditions for 
delivery of infrastructure/
community priorities

•  Being an Employer of 
choice.

•  Shaping the current and 
future skills, behaviours 
and expertise needed to 
deliver as an organisation

SErVICE 
PLaNS 

& STAFF 
oBJECTIVES

MEDIUM�TErM 

FINaNCI
aL 

STraTEg
y

MEDIUM�
TErM 

FINaNCIaL 
STraTEgy

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 20



3

1.  We start with four important principles: 2. We build the evidence base

3. We ask Councillors to consider and balance the evidence gathered to shape our priorities

Vision led 
We aim to be an organisation of excellence 
committed to improving the quality of life of all 
the people of Test Valley.

Values driven
We are committed to high standards in 
everything we do, shaping our behaviours 
and building our reputation in the eyes of our 
residents.

Our five values are:

 Accountability 

 Integrity 

 Empowerment 

 Inclusiveness� 

 Ambition

Democratically accountable
Our councillors, elected by local people, shape 
what we do and bring together the needs and 
expectations of the communities they represent 
in order to make balanced decisions. 

Evidence-based decision making
We seek to understand the key issues and then we 
take a full assessment of what is needed and why.

How we develop the plan and our priorities

Public engagement: 
During the summer of 2018, local councillors and 
officers attended more than 70 events across 
the Borough and engaged with more than 2,000 
residents about what was important to them 
and would improve their quality of life. Residents 
were also invited to complete a survey online. 
This was advertised through social media, online 
videos and a link on our website. 

We used creative methods to engage with 
different groups, including organising 
competitions, games and workshops. In addition 
we actively took part in events organised by 
communities such as Andover Parkrun. By 
attending local events, setting up smaller focus 
groups and inviting residents to share their views 
online we now have a greater understanding 
of what is important to our residents which has 
helped us to shape our strategic priorities. 

An inclusive approach: 
Inclusiveness forms one of the Council’s five 
values and sits at the heart of our evidence-

based approach. Reflecting the needs of all 
communities in order to ensure that not just 
those who shout the loudest are heard is a pre-
requisite to making well-informed decisions. 

The Council’s Equality Objectives are published 
as part of the Corporate Plan. They provide the 
framework in which the Council ensures an 
inclusive approach as part of our duties under 
the Equality Act. 

Objective 1: To strengthen the Council’s 
evidence-led approach for developing new 
policy and strategy. By developing a suite of 
engagement tools and clear processes that will 
enable the needs and views of people who share 
a protected characteristic to be understood.

Objective 2: To strengthen the Council’s 
approach to understanding the experience 
people have of the services they receive. We will 
develop ways in which the views of people who 
share a protected characteristic are sought as 
part of reviewing how services are provided.

Our councillors set the priorities for the next four years and beyond. Their role has been to set the 
priorities of the Plan by considering and balancing the evidence and information collected to inform 
what the Council will do over the next four years and beyond.

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 21



4

About Test Valley 

128,965
Population (2019 
predictions SAPF)

136,242 
Estimated 2023 

population

5.6% 
increase

New number  
of Wards 

20 59,201
Estimated 

households in 2023

56,600
Test Valley jobs (2017)

55,666
Estimated 

households in 2019

5.4% 
increase

New number of 
Councillors 

43
7

times winner 
of Federation 

of Small 
Businesses 

awards
Over £1Million 

awarded to communities 
through CAF Grants 2015-19

3
open spaces 
with Green  
Flag award 
standard

9
Local nature 

reserves

42%

31%

9%

18%Terraced

Semi- 
Detached

Flat

Detached

Housing type

6,145
Test Valley businesses

34.7% 
rural population 

65.3% 
urban population 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 22



 

?

 

5

Residents are keen to take part 
in more leisure activities across 
the Borough making the most of 
Test Valley’s green spaces.

•  Being able to easily access the 
countryside and green spaces 
within Test Valley. 

•  More accessible and well-linked 
cycling and walking routes.

•  Continued investment in our 
green spaces and nature 
reserves. 

Test Valley’s residents care about 
their local environment and want 
to recycle more.

•  They would like to have more 
opportunities to recycle. 

•  More, clearer information about 
what they can recycle and how 
they can play their part. 

Community�spirit�Is�something�
that residents rate highly.

•   Increasing importance of helping 
our neighbours.  

•   Getting involved in activities in 
their local community.

•   People want to do more but time 
is a viewed as a barrier.

Residents highlighted their 
ambitions and aspirations for Test 
Valley’s town centres

•  More events and activities.
•  Amenities such as family friendly 

restaurants and leisure facilities.
•  Good availability of local services 

and transport links. 
•  Many people recognised that town 

centres are changing, becoming 
less retail focused and developing 
into destinations where people 
can enjoy social activities.  

Public feedback
Overall, the residents of Test Valley expressed their aspirations and determination to support and develop their Borough. They care 
greatly about the place they live and want to see it grow and develop in a way that supports them and their communities.

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 23



6

Looking�ahead:
Challenges and 
opportunities 

Encouraging inclusive growth within our towns 
Our challenge is to ensure that the benefits of 
growth impact positively on all of our communities. 
For example, as new people locate to Andover and 
Romsey it is imperative that we are agile in future-
proofing our town centres as places that bring 
communities together.

Sustaining vibrant rural communities
Around a third of the Borough’s population 
lives within our rural areas. We need to explore 
what more we can do to champion the ongoing 
sustainability of our rural communities. By working 
with local people and key partners to ensure that 
the right homes are in the right places, underpinned 
by appropriate infrastructure to enable our villages 
to be great places to live, work, enjoy and visit.

Preserving the natural assets of Test Valley for 
future generations
Through our strategic planning, we will continue 
to ensure that we balance our commitments to 
housing delivery and economic growth, alongside 
preserving and enhancing the natural environment 
as a place to enjoy and spend time.

Maintaining financial resilience in an  
uncertain environment
The Council is committed to delivering high quality 
services. Through our investing ethos this has 
created the space in which to manage financial 
challenges in a sustainable way. Investing, however, 
does not mean that the Council has moved away 
from saving money or challenging ourselves to 
think differently. Our focus in the medium term 
is very much on managing the key financial risks 
associated with ongoing changes in how local 
government is funded. 

Developing our workforce to be fit for the future 
Our people (officers and councillors) are our 
greatest asset. We must continue to build upon our 
commitment of investing in their growth and future-
proofing our workforce through the development 
of a People Strategy so that we have the right skills, 
attitudes and behaviours to ensure that we are best 
placed to continue to deliver high quality services 
for our residents.

In developing this Plan we have 
been looking ahead to understand 
the strategic challenges we will face 
over the next four years and beyond. 
Understanding these challenges 
means that we can also view them as 
opportunities and can continue our 
programme to do things better for our 
residents. 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 24



7

OUR 
INVESTING 
APPROACH

Having  
a clear 

business 
 case

Delivers the 
right results

Continuous 
review 

Open to all 
options

our�Investing�
Approach 
We are an ambitious, innovative and 
optimistic Council. Operating within an 
environment in which there is an ever 
increasing demand on our services 
within tough financial conditions, we 
have sought to develop and embed our 
“investing philosophy” at the heart of how 
we do business as an organisation. 
Investing is about more than just money; it is 
about devoting our energy, skills and resources 
to achieving the best results for our residents 
and communities. To achieve this, our operating 
model underpins our approach and how we 
pursue the ambitions of this plan. It enables us 
to undertake a full business assessment of our 
existing and potential activities and opportunities, 
so that we can make the right decisions about 
where to invest. This means we can be confident 
that we are taking an efficient and effective 
approach and delivering value for money for our 
residents.

•  Understanding the  
challenge or issue

•  Taking an evidence-based 
approach bringing together 
key facts, external influences 
and community engagement

•   Taking a full assessment of 
what’s needed and why

•  Assessing the risks and 
resources required

•   Assessing the potential 
benefits

•  Being confident that we 
will get the best outcomes 
for our residents and 
communities

•  Ensuring the right approach 
at the right price that 
delivers value for money

•  Not relying on one model of 
delivery - for example, sharing 
resources and facilities, utilising 
new technology to make it easier 
to do business with us, initiating 
enterprising activities to generate 
income and using our skills and 
resources differently through our 
organisational agility.

•  Focusing on what works and 
who is best placed to deliver 
what is needed

•  Ensuring ongoing delivery of 
efficient and effective services

•  Measuring the right things 
at the right time through our 
performance boards

•  Looking at every pound spent 
in every service against the 
backdrop of what people need 
through Corporate Challenge

•  Learning from our successes 
and failures

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 25



8

Our Priorities
Using our investing approach we 
will grow the potential of...

Town Centres
to adapt and be attractive,  

vibrant, and prosperous places 

Communities
to be empowered, connected and 
able to build upon their strengths

People
to be able to live well and  

fulfil their aspirations 

The�Local�Environment
for current and  

future generations 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 26



9

Growing the 
potential of
Town Centres 
to adapt and be 
attractive, vibrant and 
prosperous places 

9

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 27



10

Town Centres

•  We shall involve the people of Andover in the 
development of a Masterplan so that they 
can contribute to shaping the future of the 
town centre, together with Andover Vision, the 
Business Improvement District (BID) and other 
interested parties.

•  We will bring forward proposals for the 
regeneration and re-development of Andover 
town centre to support the future demand for 
business, leisure and residential opportunities. 

•  In partnership with Romsey Future we will 
develop a Vision and Masterplan as a blueprint 
for the future development of land south of 
Romsey town centre. 

•  Working closely with local businesses, we will 
support the development of the new BID in 
Andover town centre, delivering on its priorities 
to increase footfall and improve the High Street.

•  In Romsey we will work with local businesses 
and stakeholders through Romsey Future to 
promote the town’s tourism and visitor offer. 

•  We shall work with the EM3 Local Enterprise 
Partnership in pursuance of their strategic 
growth ambitions. In particular, we will also 
explore the opportunities presented by the use 
of changing technology.

•  Through the review of our Local Plan, we will 
provide a long-term strategic overview of what 
is needed in our town centres, within an ever 
changing environment, putting in place the 
mechanisms to enable delivery.

1.  Taking this once in a generation opportunity 
to respond to the changing face of the High 
Street. Future-proofing our town centres to 
be accessible places where people live, shop, 
work and spend their leisure time.

2.  Enhancing public realm and improving the 
appearance and environment of our town 
centres. 

3.  Making our town centres attractive places for 
inward investment to attract more jobs and 
increase footfall.

4.  Working with Andover Vision and Romsey 
Future to ensure that growth within our town 
centres benefits all of our communities. 

Over the next four years and 
beyond we will invest in:

 
What’s going to happen as a result?

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 28



11

Growing the 
potential of
Communities  
to be empowered, 
connected and able 
to build upon their 
strengths

11

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 29



12

Communities

•  Our Members, as Community Councillors, will 
enable and facilitate communities to come 
together and ensure that all voices are heard. 
Councillors will champion and support people to 
develop and deliver local projects and initiatives. 

•  Building upon our success in empowering 
communities, we shall work closely with 
town and parish councils and other local 
organisations, to strengthen this work further. 
We will support more communities to take part 
in a range of community planning activities 
such as neighbourhood planning, community 
resilience and local action planning.

•  Through the Andover Vision and Romsey 
Future partnerships we will play our part in 
helping to deliver the shared ambitions of these 
communities.

•  We will work with our partners in the voluntary 
and community sector to reduce the barriers 
that people face in being able to give their 
time and volunteer within their communities. 
A priority is to focus on how opportunities 
to volunteer can be made easier and more 
accessible. 

•  Promoting the wellbeing of our communities by 
securing a legacy of outstanding sports, leisure 
and cultural spaces that are accessible and will 
enable a positive impact on the quality of life 
of the Borough’s residents for generations to 
come. 

•  Through the delivery of the Economic 
Development Strategy we will ensure an 
ongoing focus on promoting the Borough as 
“being open for business”. 

1.  Building upon our positive track record of 
working with communities. We will do this 
by harnessing the strengths that exist within 
communities, so that local people are able to 
contribute and play an active role. 

2.  Bringing local communities together 
alongside their councillors and other 
partners to plan for their future needs. We 
will enable communities to take forward 
their ambitions by helping them to access 
funding opportunities, resources and 
support. 

3.  Supporting the Borough’s business 
community by attracting inward investment 
and creating the conditions for new and 
existing businesses to thrive. Encouraging 
the growth of economic prosperity within 
Test Valley communities.

Over the next four years and 
beyond we will invest in:

 
What’s going to happen as a result?

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 30



13

Growing the 
potential of
People  
to be able to live 
well and fulfil their 
aspirations

13

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 31



14

People

•  We will strengthen our community-led approach 
to spatial planning so that local people can play 
an active part in shaping their communities. 
This will include our ongoing commitment to 
undertake the review of the Local Plan in an 
inclusive way, and support communities who 
will benefit from developing a Neighbourhood 
Plan or Village Design Statement to do so. 
More specifically, we will work with all of our 
communities to explore opportunities to deliver 
more new affordable homes in urban and rural 
areas. 

•  We will renew our key housing strategies to 
focus on new ways of working that will support 
people to build upon their strengths, to help 
resolve their housing issues. We will support 
people in a personalised way by building upon 
lessons learned from the developmental pilot, 
enabling people to access the right support and 
the right time. 

•  We shall explore opportunities to see how more 
social rented housing can be provided. We will 
work with the private rented sector to meet 

housing need, drive up standards and develop 
services that improve access to the sector for 
people on low incomes. 

•  We will support communities to ensure that the 
right infrastructure at the right scale is secured 
that delivers homes and employment growth, 
enabling people to access a job, live in a decent 
home and fulfil their aspirations.

•  In partnership with business and education 
providers we will work to increase the 
provision and level of skills across Test Valley. 
We will continue to build on our track record 
of fostering stronger relationships between 
schools and businesses. 

•  We will continue to make the most of the 
opportunities for inward investment to 
increase business productivity across Test 
Valley. Through our strategic partnerships with 
partners, including Walworth Business Park and 
the University of Southampton Science Park 
in Chilworth, we will promote the important 
economic growth role that the Borough plays 
both in Hampshire and beyond. 

Over the next four years and 
beyond we will invest in:

 
What’s going to happen as a result?

1.  Working with communities and partners to help 
identify and deliver the supply of homes which 
reflects current and future housing needs. 

2. Taking a positive approach to supporting those 
who are most vulnerable. Enabling people 
to build upon their strengths to address the 
underlying causes of their housing need. 
Improving outcomes and support available 
for people who are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness. 

3. Creating communities that have the 
infrastructure and accessibility to meet the 
needs of a changing and growing population. 
Establishing attractive, sustainable and vibrant 
communities for people to live, work and enjoy. 

4. Supporting the growth and quality of 
employment within Test Valley to enable 
people to fulfil their aspirations. Addressing 
barriers within the current and future workforce 
such as raising aspirations, skills and access 
to opportunities. Increase the variety of jobs 
available so that people can earn and live well.

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 32



15

Growing the 
potential of
The Local�
Environment  
for current and future 
generations

15

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 33



16

The Local 
Environment

•  Through the review of our Local Plan and our 
strategies for green spaces, we will continue to 
identify opportunities to increase access to the 
countryside and green spaces for Test Valley 
residents. 

•  We will work with parish and town councils to 
make the most of the green spaces within their 
communities. 

•  We will work with residents to understand their 
need for more, safer cycle routes and walkways, 
taking on board their feedback and using it 
to inform and develop plans to deliver an 
appropriate infrastructure. We will also support 
community-based initiatives to encourage more 
people to use these facilities.

•  Our “Love Where You Live” campaign will 
continue to encourage and promote ways in 
which everyone can help improve where they 
live and work through community-led activities 
such as “Sparkle Days” and working with local 
schools. We will also continue to take a zero-
tolerance approach to people who spoil local 
areas. 

•  Through the Hampshire Waste Partnership 
we will play our part to develop opportunities 
to increase the range of materials that can be 
recycled. Taking a positive approach, we will 
encourage people to recycle more by developing 
campaigns and initiatives that educate and help 
make recycling easier. 

1.  Providing high-quality green infrastructure 
such as green spaces and nature reserves 
for our communities to access and enjoy for 
generations to come. 

2.  Enhancing the quality of our public realm to 
improve the local environment, so that these 
are attractive spaces and places that people 
can enjoy and spend time. 

3.  Expanding the network and usage of family-
friendly cycling and walking routes to make 
them accessible and well linked, in order to 
promote wellbeing and more sustainable 
travel. 

4.  Opportunities to work with our communities 
and partners to reduce the amount of 
household waste produced by increasing 
recycling and ensuring improved knowledge 
of our recycling processes. 

5.  Making the most of the benefits from inward 
investment and economic growth. Promoting 
the Borough as an outstanding place to live 
and work, whilst safeguarding its heritage 
and natural assets.

Over the next four years and 
beyond we will invest in: 

 
What’s going to happen as a result?

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 34



17

What next:
Delivering our 
priorities and 
measuring  
our impact

The Corporate Plan is underpinned by the 
Corporate Action Plan (CAP) which runs for the 
lifetime of the plan and is updated annually. This 
shows, in detail, how we intend to make progress 
and focuses on the specific projects we will take 
forward against each of the priorities. 

The Cabinet reviews the performance of the 
CAP on an annual basis. This enables the active 
performance management of the CAP and ensures 
that the Council is allocating resource in the most 
effective way. Each year, the Leader of the Council 
will make an annual presentation to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to report on progress 
made during that year. This will form the basis of an 
annual update report and will be published on the 
Council’s website.

We monitor our progress by measuring the impact 
of our work and by showing the difference we have 
made as a result. This is done by having a range 
of performance and satisfaction-based indicators 
against which our progress can be judged. The 
indicators are used as part of a broader suite 
of operational management tools that ensure 
standards are being met ensuring that the things 
that matter most to residents are being delivered 
in an efficient and effective way. The indicators 
also provide a useful analysis, both in terms of the 
performance within a given year and by telling a 
story over a number of years. 

In addition, each of our services produces an 
annual Service Plan which describes the things they 
do and how they contribute to the Corporate Plan 
priorities. Progress is monitored on a quarterly 
basis through the service performance boards. 

The Corporate Plan sets out our 
priorities, providing the direction and 
focus for our activities and guiding the 
allocation of resources over the next 
four years. It also outlines the impact 
we hope to make as a result of our 
actions, so that we can demonstrate to 
residents how we are working towards 
our vision to improve quality of life in 
Test Valley and be an organisation of 
excellence.

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 35



18

EMPoWErMENT
We are an organisation committed to 
continuous learning, enabling and motivating 
all of our people to do their best work.

INCLUSIVENESS
We value diversity, promote equality 
of opportunity for all, and ensure 
that our services are accessible to 
everyone in Test Valley.

INTEgrITy
We ensure that as an organisation, 
our communities can trust us to 
act fairly and honestly, and so can 
our staff.

aMBITIoN
We are a dynamic organisation 
committed to achieving, improving 
and innovating.

aCCoUNTaBILITy
We are accountable to all of the 
people of Test Valley for our actions 
and how we use resources, ensuring 
that we provide value for money.

Our Values
We are committed to high standards in 
everything we do, shaping our behaviours 
and building our reputation in the eyes of 
our residents. 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 36



19

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 37



  Report of the Task and Finish Panel – Car Parking 

 
 
Report of the Chairman of the Panel, Cllr Dorothy Baverstock (Portfolio: Planning 
Policy & Transport)  
 

Recommended:  

1. That the parking standards and minimum dimensions of spaces currently 
set out in the adopted Revised Local Plan (2016) be reviewed as part of 
the next local plan review. 

2. That the next local plan review consider what practical steps could be 
taken to influence the design and layout of future parking within 
residential schemes. 

3. That the Council write to Government to highlight the issue of commercial 
vehicles parking in residential areas and request steps are taken to 
enforce possible restrictions. 

 

SUMMARY:  

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee appointed a member Panel to review the 
issues of residential parking; public car parking; and commercial vehicles being 
parked in residential areas and identify recommendations for future provision and 
control. 

 

1 Introduction  

1.1 The provision of safe, convenient and usable car parking allows for functional 
residential schemes and town centres. In a predominantly rural area the use of 
private vehicles to access work, facilities and services is often the only realistic 
option and as such sufficient car parking is needed. 

1.2 In September 2018, OSCOM agreed to establish a panel to undertake a 
review of car parking within the Borough. The Panel was chaired by Cllr 
Dorothy Baverstock and also included Cllr Cockaday, Cllr C. Dowden, Cllr 
Hawke, and Cllr Johnston. 

1.3 The Panel met six times with members undertaking their own site visits of 
residential schemes. As a result of the review, the Panel has sought to 
evaluate the approach taken by the Council, and identify future areas for 
further development which forms part of the recommendation.  

2 Background 

2.1 The overall aim of the Panel was to review the Council’s approach to car 
parking. The breadth of such a topic necessitated a focus on three areas as 
agreed at OSCOM in September 201; these were (1) residential parking; (2) 
public car parks; and (3) the parking of commercial vehicles in residential 
areas. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 38

ITEM 11



2.2 The scope of the three areas covered both the regulatory and planning fields 
and as such the panel were assisted by the Engineering and Transport 
Manager and the Head of Planning Policy. 

2.3 Throughout the discussions the panel identified possible tasks that may be 
undertaken in future OSCOM reviews. This included the provision of electric 
vehicle charging points; a review of public car parking charges; and the 
process for reviewing the provision of on-street personal disabled parking 
spaces.   

3 Findings 

Residential Parking 

3.1 As part of the review into the current Local Plan the Council revisited the 
residential parking standards, which were last reviewed by Hampshire County 
Council, as highway authority, in 2002. In accordance with government advice 
at that time, there was a desire to reduce dependence on travel by car in 
favour of more sustainable options. This focuses on promoting the majority of 
development in accessible locations and encouraging alternative methods of 
travel to the car. This resulted in the standards being established as 
maximums. This approach did not specifically aim to curtail car ownership and 
didn’t recognise the high dependence on cars in rural areas.  

3.2 In response to a change in government guidance giving the Council flexibility 
to establish their own parking standards the Council undertook a review of the 
current situation. This included a review of the existing and future car 
ownership levels within Test Valley. According to the 2011 census 86.5% of 
households within the Borough had access to a car or van, which is 
considerably higher than the national average of 74.2%. Furthermore 48% of 
households have 2 or more cars or vans in Test Valley, which is again 
considerably above the national average of 32% and the South East average 
of 40%.  A range of residential schemes across the borough were also 
assessed to consider both the number of spaces and how the spaces were 
provided.  

3.3 This evidence allowed for the Council to establish minimum residential parking 
standards. It was considered that there would be a need to provide details 
within the policy identifying that there may be circumstances when lower 
parking provisions may be considered, to include where the demand for 
parking would be lower as a result of the type of development, where there are 
significant constraints or where parking overspill can be controlled. It was 
necessary to have these caveats to ensure that the Council wasn’t acting 
unreasonably.  

3.4 The majority of the major residential developments in Andover and Romsey, 
which have completed or are nearing completion were permitted at the time of 
maximum standards. The Panel recognised that those schemes where a 
minimum standard had been used in the planning application process had yet 
to be built out and occupied to the extent were a detailed review could be 
undertaken. The Panel considered that this should be undertaken as part of 
the review into the next local plan.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 39



3.5 In association with the parking requirements a standard dimension for garages 
was included within the local plan. Garages would only count as a car parking 
space where a minimum internal dimension of 3m x 6m for a single garage. 
This would ensure that garages are of sufficient size to be usable for the 
parking of cars and provide some room for cycles and other storage. This 
approach of specifying the width of garages was tested at appeal at 
Abbotswood with the Inspector endorsing the Council’s standard (see annex 
1). 

3.6 The panel brought examples of parking spaces within residential 
developments which were not being used by residents. This led to 
inappropriate parking which effected how people move within the site. The 
points raised by the panel complement a Corporate Action Plan workstream in 
which officers evaluate major development areas and identify lessons to be 
learnt for future schemes. Both of these reviews have identified the 
importance of well designed, located and laid out areas of parking within 
residential schemes in order to reduce the conflict between parked cars and 
pedestrians.  

3.7 Panel members also identified the issue of tandem parking in front of garages. 
It was highlighted that this arrangement may prevent residents from utilising 
the garage as a car parking space because of the inconvenience of moving 
vehicles. The panel recommended as part of the review of the local plan 
consideration be given to influencing the design and layout of parking 
arrangements within residential developments.  

Public Car Parks 

3.8 Members fully recognised the key role that having appropriate and well 
advertised public car parks have in maintaining the vitality and viability of our 
town centres. They did, however, recognise that healthy town centres are not 
solely reliant on car parking but that there are other interconnected elements 
such as the provision of public transport; improved retail and entertainment 
offer; and improvements to the public realm.  

3.9 As part of the work of Romsey Future and Andover Vision the Council 
commissioned consultants to asses the adequacy, quality and location of 
parking provision within Andover and Romsey looking at past trends, existing 
provision and trying to forecast future parking requirements in the short (5 
years); medium (10 years) and long term (10+ years) to establish if there is, or 
is likely to be, a deficit or surplus in public car park provision.  

3.10 The Council operates eight pay and display car parks in Romsey, ranging from 
short stay parking of up to 2 hours, to long-stay all-day parking. In Andover 
there are 15 car parks with a similar breadth of length of stay.  Due to the 
number of variables the panel recognised the difficulty in forecasting future 
demand. They did, however, look to ensure that any future redevelopment of 
both town centres incorporate sufficient and well designed car parking to meet 
the needs of visitors and residents, including those from surrounding rural 
areas who primary means of accessing the town centres is via private car.  It 
was also acknowledged the need to ensure disabled parking, with appropriate 
gaps between spaces, formed part of any future review.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 40



3.11 With regards to the dimensions of parking spaces the local plan sets out a 
minimum width of 2.4m x 4.8m. This is the design standard used for Council 
car parks.  However, dimensions do vary depending on site restrictions. As 
part of this review the panel explored the dimensions of private cars in order to 
consider whether the minimum parking standards were appropriate. 

3.12 The size of cars varies considerably with the average size of a family car being 
1.6m wide x 4.4m and with the average size of a multiple person vehicle being 
1.8m wide x 4.6m. Whilst both types of vehicles would fit within the minimum 
spaces the panel recognised that certain 4x4 models have gained popularity 
and may not fit within the dimensions of the parking spaces. This may cause 
unintended inconvenience for other users.  

3.13 Whilst there is no data available for the range of sizes of vehicles that use the 
Council’s car parks or owned within the Borough the panel felt that in their 
experience there was an increased size and that the minimum standard 
should be reviewed. It was recognised that an increase in the dimension of 
parking spaces would have an impact on the numbers of spaces however the 
panel considered it necessary to review the minimum standard and 
incorporate this within any future proposals for additional parking and included 
within the next local plan. 

 Parking of commercial vehicles in residential areas 

3.14 The panel raised concerns over the ever increasing number of commercial 
and oversized vehicles parking within housing estates. Whilst parking 
restrictions (e.g. resident permit zones, single and double yellow lines) had 
been introduced in some areas these are ineffective in preventing works 
vehicles parking in residential areas.  The panel recognised that the Parking 
Team do endeavour to be responsive to complaints from the public when 
organising enforcement patrols but they suggested more should be done to 
raise the issue at a national level. The Panel recommended that the Council 
should write to Government to highlight the issue and request steps are taken 
to enforce possible restrictions.  

3.15 Linked to the above discussion was the issue of restrictions being put in place 
through covenants and who was responsible for enforcement. The panel 
recognised that this was not the role of the Council but felt that more could be 
done by landowners and developers to raise greater awareness to residents of 
the restrictions and put in place measures of enforcement.  

4 Conclusion 
 
4.1 This report considers the review of car parking provision and focuses on three 

main areas of provision, standards, location and enforcement. The Panel 
recommends several actions with the intention of improving the car parking 
provision on residential schemes and for residents and visitors to Andover and 
Romsey, in the future.  

 
4.2 The report also identifies topics which the panel considers to be potential 

areas for future OSCOM reviews. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 41



 

 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 

 

Test Valley Borough Local Plan (2016) 

iTransport parking study (2017) 

 

Confidentiality   

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public. 

 

No of Annexes: 1 

Author: Graham Smith & Steve 
Raw  

Ext: 8141 & 8721 

 

File Ref:  

Report to: OSCOM Date: 20 March 2019 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 42



Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 43



Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 44



Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 45



Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 46



Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 47



 

 Programme of Work for the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 
Report of Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Recommended: 
 
The Committee is requested to: 
 
1. Review the outcomes on the work programme and recommendations 

update. 
 
2. Approve the future work programme. 
 

SUMMARY:  

 The purpose of this report is to enable members to keep the Committee’s future 
work programme and recommendations update under review. 

 
1. Background 
 

1.1 The OSCOM Work Programme is presented at Annex 1 for review and 
approval.   

 

1.2 The OSCOM Task and Finish Panels update is presented at Annex 2 for the 
Committee’s review and comments.   

 

1.3 The Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Annex 3 for the Committee to 
consider. 
 

1.4 Annex 4 tracks the recommendations to Cabinet and Council. 
 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 

None 

Confidentiality   

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public. 

No of Annexes: 4 

Author: Caroline Lovelock Ext: 8014 

File Ref:  

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: 20 March 2019 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019

Page 48

ITEM 12



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

*
  Scrutiny Indicator Key:   

1  :  Holding to Account 2  :  Performance Management 3  :  Policy Review 4  :  Policy Development 5  :  External Scrutiny 
 
 

 

ANNEX 1 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
*Scrutiny 
Indicator 

Requested by Purpose of Report 
(Responsible Officer/ Member) 

20 MARCH (ROMSEY)    

Round table discussion on 
Review of Community Toilet 
Scheme 

3 Committee To review how the community toilet scheme has been working over the previous 12 months 
(Corporate Director) 

Drug Intervention Services in 
Test Valley 

3 Committee To consider the outcomes of the Community Safety Management Group deliberations (Community 
Safety Manager) (20 mins) 

Draft Corporate Plan 4 Committee To consider and make comment on the draft Corporate Plan (Policy Manager) (20 mins) 

Parking (Car Parks and 
Streets) Panel 

3 Committee To consider recommendations from the Panel on the review of car parking provision which focuses 
on three main areas of provision, standards, location and enforcement 
(Councillor Baverstock) (20 mins) 

24 APRIL (ANDOVER)    

Draft OSCOM Chairman’s 
Annual Briefing  

2 Committee To consider the Chairman’s draft Annual Briefing prior to being submitted to Council (Cllr Jeffrey) (15 
mins) 

Town Centre Review Panel 
report 

4 Committee To consider the outcomes of the Review Panel’s work. (Cllr Hurst) (20 mins) 

Disability Review Report 4 Committee To review the way in which the Council considers people with disabilities. (Cllr Hamilton) (20 mins) 

22 MAY (ANDOVER    

Final OSCOM Chairman’s 
Annual Briefing 

2 Committee To consider the Chairman’s final Annual Briefing prior to being submitted to Council (Cllr Jeffrey) (15 
mins) 

19 JUNE (ANDOVER)    
Round table discussion on 
Community Planning with a rural 
emphasis 

3 Committee To consider community planning initiations in rural areas discussion with officers (Head of Housing and 
Environmental Health, Head of Planning Policy, Corporate Director and Policy Manager)  

Risk Management 2 Committee To consider the annual Risk Management report (Principal Auditor) (20 mins) 

Portfolio Holder Presentation 1 Committee To receive a presentation from a Portfolio Holder (Portfolio to be confirmed) (60 mins) 

Corporate Action Plan 2 Committee To receive an update on the Key Performance Indicators (Policy Manager) (20 mins) 

                                                 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 49



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

*
  Scrutiny Indicator Key:   

1  :  Holding to Account 2  :  Performance Management 3  :  Policy Review 4  :  Policy Development 5  :  External Scrutiny 
 
 

 

 
*Scrutiny 
Indicator 

Requested by Purpose of Report 
(Responsible Officer/ Member) 

17 JULY (ROMSEY)    

18 SEPTEMBER (ANDOVER)    

The Annual Review of 
Complaints 

2 Committee To receive the Annual Review report. (Complaints and Improvements Officer) (20 mins) 

Annual Audit Report 2 Committee To comment and recommendations as appropriate (Head of Finance/Auditor Manager) (20 mins) 

Draft Budget Fees and 
Charges 

4 Committee To consider the draft Budget Panel report (Vice Chairman) (20 mins) 

16 OCTOBER (ANDOVER)    

Portfolio Holder Presentation 1 Committee To receive a presentation from a Portfolio Holder (Portfolio to be confirmed) (60 mins) 

13 NOVEMBER (ANDOVER)    

Round table discussion on 
Review of Integra 

3 Committee To consider the latest position on the Hampshire Waste Strategy. (Paul Wykes) 

Budget Panel Report Draft 
Budget 

4 Committee To consider the draft Budget Panel report (Vice Chairman) (20 mins) 

11 DECEMBER (ROMSEY)    

Round table discussion on 
Communications 

2 Committee To receive a presentation from the Council’s Communications Manager on the Council’s approach to 
Communication (Communications Manager) 

Portfolio Holder Presentation 1 Committee To receive a presentation from a Portfolio Holder (Portfolio to be confirmed) (60 mins) 

 

DATE TO BE CONFIRMED 
*Scrutiny 
Indicator 

Requested by Purpose of Report 
(Responsible Officer/ Member) 

Round table discussion on 
Social/Affordable Housing 

3 Committee The Head of Housing and Environmental Health  to lead a discussion on the current national situation on the 
delivery of social/affordable housing (Head of Housing and Environmental Health) 

Hampshire Fire and Rescue 5 Committee To update the Committee on how the new structure is working 

 

                                                 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 50



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

*
  Scrutiny Indicator Key:   

1  :  Holding to Account 2  :  Performance Management 3  :  Policy Review 4  :  Policy Development 5  :  External Scrutiny 
 
 

 

 

BRIEFING NOTES 

 

2018   

March Affordable Housing Update (Head of Housing and Environmental Health) 19 March 2018 

May Safeguarding Children & Vulnerable Adults (Community Engagement Manager) 22 May 2018 

June Test Valley Partnership Annual Review (Policy Manager) 
Risk Management (Principal Auditor) 

 
31 July 2018 

2019   

March Affordable Housing Update (Head of Housing and Environmental Health)  

November Cemetery Rules and Regulations Review (Head of Community and Leisure) 
Hampshire County Waste Strategy (Head of Environmental Services) 

 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 51



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

ANNEX 2  
 

Panel Lead Member Progress Update 
Report back to 

OSCOM 

Completed Panels    

Community Safety Panel Councillor Baverstock Phase 1 complete Phase 2 final report in July 3 August 2016 

Review of Call In Process Councillor C Dowden 
Recommendations to Cabinet on 19 April 2017 and Council 
agreed recommendations on 6 September 2017. 

 

Communications and Procurement Panel Councillor J Cockaday 
Considered on 25 October 2017 recommendations to Cabinet 
agreed on 18 November 2017 

 

Public Involvement Panel Councillor Baverstock 

Scoping document agreed by OSCOM on 20 September 2017 

Report back 

Recommendation to Cabinet 

Findings of the Panel referred to the Member and Community 
Development working group to develop proposals further and to 
report back to OSCOM with proposed actions for onward 
submission to Cabinet 

 

21 March 2018 

18 April 2018 

Planning Panel Councillor Hibberd 

 
Scoping template agreed 
Report back  
Panel’s final report to OSCOM 
Recommendations considered by Cabinet  

 
22 November 2017 
25 July 2018 
19 September 2018 
10 October 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 52



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

Panel Lead Member Progress Update 
Report back to 

OSCOM 

Completed Panels    

Council Tax Support Scheme  Councillor Baverstock 

Meeting to be arranged early January to review the options 
for the Council Tax Support Scheme 2019/2020 
 
Report back 

Recommendation to Cabinet on options 5, 6 and 7 

Cabinet agreed to undertake consultations on options 5, 6 
and 7 with a slight amendment to option 5 

Panel to reconvene to consider the results of the consultation.  

Consultation now complete final report considered by 
OSCOM prior to consideration by Cabinet. 

Cabinet agreed at its meeting on 5 December 2018 to 
endorse the Panel’s recommendations and a full report will be 
considered at Council on 23 January 2019 

 
 
 
21 March 2018 
 
 
 
18 April 2018 
 
 
 
14 November 2018 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 53



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

 

Panel Lead Member Progress Update 
Report back to 

OSCOM 

Ongoing Panels    

Parking (Car Park and Streets) Panel Councillor Baverstock 

First meeting held on 6 July to agree scoping template 

Scoping template agreed by OSCOM 

Meeting to look in more detail at specific areas and discuss 
way forward 

Meeting with Head of Planning Policy to consider the main 
issues and how they can be taken forward to influence the 
next Local Plan 

The Panel met on 20 February to discuss the draft report. 

19 September 2018 

2 November 2018 

20 March 2019 

 

The future of hospitals in Andover and Romsey Councillor Baverstock Scoping report to be produced and a panel set up to include 
Councillors Bailey, Cockaday, Hamilton and Mutton 

 

Future of High Streets in Test Valley Councillor Hurst 

A Panel to be set up to review how emerging policies could 
influence and develop High Streets across the Borough 

Workshops to be held to gather views/evidence from 
stakeholders and the community and report back to OSCOM. 

 

 

24 April 2019 

Armed Forces Covenant 
Councillor Borg-Neal/Councillor 
Hamilton Scoping report to be produced.  

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 54



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

 
 

 
 
 
 

ANNEX 3 

Cabinet Work Programme 
 

13 February 2019 – 15 May 2019 
 
Further information 
1. This is a formal notice under Regulation 9 of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and Access to 

Information)(England) Regulations 2012. This edition supersedes all previous editions. 
2. Documents submitted to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member(s) for decision will be in the form of a formal report, which if public and 

non-urgent, will be available for public inspection on this website at least 5 clear working days before the date that the decision is 
due to be made. 

3. Background papers for such reports are listed in this Programme where their identity is known in advance of the report being 
written. 

4. Documents shown will be available from the Democratic Services Manager at Test Valley Borough Council, Beech Hurst, Weyhill 
Road, Andover, Hants, SP10 3AJ.  They can also be contacted at admin@testvalley.gov.uk. 

5. Please note that additional documents relevant to those matters mentioned in the Work Programme may be submitted to the 
decision maker.  

6.  Whilst the majority of the Cabinet’s business at the meetings listed in this Work Programme will be open to the public and media 
organisations to attend, this is formal notice under the above regulations that part of the Cabinet meetings listed in this Work 
Programme may be held in private because the agenda and reports for the meeting will contain exempt information under Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in withholding 
the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. 

6. To view details of the members of the Council’s Cabinet who will be making these decisions, please click the link below: 
Cabinet Members 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 55

mailto:admin@testvalley.gov.uk
http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/aboutyourcouncil/councilcabinetandcommitteemeetings/portfolioholders/


 
 
 

KEY DECISIONS 

A key decision is one which is likely 

1. to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates;   

or 

2.  to be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or electoral 
divisions in the area of the local authority. 

The Council’s thresholds are  

a. Decisions on spending which are within the annual budgets 
approved by the Council 

NO THRESHOLD NOT KEY DECISION 

b. Decisions on cash flow, investments and borrowings. NO THRESHOLD NOT KEY DECISION 

c. Decisions for spending or savings outside the budget, or 
included in the annual budget with reservations. 

SPENDING EXCESS OF £75,000 PER ITEM IS A KEY 
DECISION 

 

Arrangements for making representations to the cabinet regarding decisions contained within the work programme 
 
A member of the public may address the Cabinet in accordance with the Public Participation Scheme.  Notice must be given to the 
Democratic Services Manager by noon on the day before the meeting. 

Members of the public are welcome to write to the appropriate Head of Service as listed in the Work Programme on any matter where a 
decision is to be made. 

 
 
 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 56



 

Date of 
Decision 

Item Key 
Decision 

Decision 
maker 

May include 
information 
which is not 
to be made 

public* 

Documents to be 
submitted for 
consideration 

Head of Service Notice of 
proposed 

decision first 
published 

13 Mar 
2019 

Romsey 

Write off of Uncollectable 
Debts 

No Cabinet  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Revenues 

(Local Taxation 
& Project 

Enterprise) 

25 Oct 2018 

13 Mar 
2019 

Romsey 

Homelessness Reduction 
Act & Future of the 
Developmental Pilot 

No Cabinet  Open Report of the Housing 
and Environmental 

Health Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Housing and 

Environmental 
Health 

4 Feb 2019 

13 Mar 
2019 

Andover 

Carry Forward of Unspent 
Revenue Budget 

Yes Cabinet  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Finance 

6 Dec 2018 

17 Apr 
2019 

Andover 

Annual Governance 
Statement 

No Council  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Finance 

6 Dec 2018 

17 Apr 
2019 

Andover 

T19 Social Inclusion 
Services Review and 
Future Provision in Test 
Valley 

Yes Council  Open Report of the Housing 
and Environmental 

Health Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Housing and 

Environmental 
Health 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Corporate Action Plan Year 
3 

Yes Cabinet  Open Report of the Leader Corporate 
Portfolio Holder 

4 Feb 2019 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 57



15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Housing Strategy Annual 
Progress Report 

No Council  Open Report of the Housing 
and Environmental 

Health Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Housing and 

Environmental 
Health 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Draft Calendar of Meetings No Council  Open Report of the 
Corporate Portfolio 

Holder 

Head of Legal 
and Democratic 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Revenue Outturn No Cabinet  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Finance 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Capital Outturn Yes Cabinet  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Finance 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Asset Management Outturn No Council  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Finance 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Treasury Management 
Review 

No Council  Open Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Finance 

4 Feb 2019 

15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Project Enterprise Outturn 
Report 

Yes Cabinet  Fully exempt Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Revenues 

(Local Taxation 
& Project 

Enterprise) 

4 Feb 2019 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 58



15 May 
2019 

Andover 

Valley Housing Outturn and 
Business Plan Update 

No Cabinet  Fully exempt Report of the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 

Head of 
Revenues 

(Local Taxation 
& Project 

Enterprise) 

4 Feb 2019 

 
Delayed/Deleted 
 

Original 
Date of 
Decision 

Item Delayed/Deleted Reason For 
Delay/Deletion 

Informed By Date Informed 

2 Jan 2019 Estates Property Matters 
 

Delayed Delayed Acting Head of 
Revenues 

02 January 2019 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 59



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

ANNEX 4 

Part 5 – Action Tracking 
 

Review of Council Tax Support Report  

 Agreed Start Date Progress Update Completion 
date 

Recommendation OSCOM 

21.3.18 

Cabinet 

18.4.18 

Council 

 

   

That consultation be undertaken 
on options 5, 6 and 7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

√ √   Agreed at Cabinet 
 
That consultation be undertaken on the following options for 
Council Tax Support Scheme for 2019/20: 
• Option 5 – Apply a cap on financial support so that Council 

Tax payers would pay a minimum of either 10%, 15% or 20% 
of their Council Tax, subject to protection for those Council 
Tax payers receiving  the ‘Support Component’ of 
Employment Support Allowance or the ‘Limited Capability 
for Work’ element of Universal Credit. 

• Option 6 – Simplification of the scheme 
• Option 7 – Increase minimum weekly Council Tax support 

award from 50p to £1 
 

 

Resolved 

 

OSCOM 

14.11.19 

Cabinet 

5.12.18 

Council 

23.1.19 

   

1. That a cap of 90% be 
applied. 

2. That the minimum 
amount of Council Tax 
Support payable be 
increased from £0.50 to 
£1.00 per week. 

3. That a minimum 
tolerance level for 
changes in income of 

£30.00 per week be set. 
 

√ √ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

√ 

 

 Agreed at Cabinet 

That the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the Review of the Council Tax Support Scheme 
for 2019-20 be endorsed for submission, with a full report and 
draft scheme, to Council on 23 January 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 60



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

Recommended to Cabinet 
 
That Cabinet be requested to 
endorse these 
recommendations for 
submission, with a full report 
and draft scheme, to Council on 
23 January 2019.  

 

 

 

Agreed at Council 
 
Resolved: 

That the local Council Tax Support Scheme (also known as the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme), detailed at Annex 1 to the report, 
be adopted - the main principles of which are as follows: 

a) base the local Council Tax Support Scheme for 
2019/20 on the existing scheme for 2018/19 with the 
following changes for working age customers: 

i. apply a cap of 90% for customers not in receipt 
of Support Component of Employment Support 
Allowance or Limited Capacity for Work element 
of Universal Credit, 

ii. increase the minimum amount of Council Tax 
Support payable to £1.00 per week, 

iii. set  a minimum tolerance level for cumulative 
changes in income of £30.00 per week; 

b) continue to disregard 100% of certain payments (for 
working age and pensioner age customers) made 
under the War Pension and Armed Forces 
Compensation Scheme; 

c) the annual uplift of the components of the Council Tax 
Support Scheme is in line with the uplift for the 
national Council Tax Support Scheme for Pensioners 
and the Housing Benefit Scheme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 61



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

 

 

Planning Panel’s Final Report on 19 September 2018 

 Agreed Start Date Progress Update Completion 
date 

Recommendation 

 

OSCOM 

19.09.18 

Cabinet 

10.10.18 

Council 

 

   

1. That Members are 
encouraged to meet with 
new Planning Officers in 
order to build a rapport. 

2. That a programme of 
planning training for 
Members be compiled and 
regular updates be 
received. 

3. That the composition of 
Planning Control 
Committee comprise of a 
Chairman, Vice Chairman 
and 12 other Members 
made up of The Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman of each 
of the two Area 
Committees plus the 
Portfolio Holder and nine 
members to balance 
northern and southern 
members as far as 
possible, as from Annual 
Council in May 2019. 

4. That the area Committees 
continue as currently. 

 

√ √ 
  Agreed at Cabinet 

1. That the recommendations from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be noted. 

 
2. That the recommendations be passed on to the Planning 

Advisory Service to be considered during their review. 

 

 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 62



Test Valley Borough Council – Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 20 March 2019 

 

 

Drug Intervention Services in Test Valley on 17 October 2018 

 Agreed Start Date Progress Update Completion 
date 

Recommendation 

 

OSCOM 

17.10.18 

Cabinet 

7.11.18 

Council 

 

   

That opportunities for funding drug 
prevention education programmes 
be explored. 

√ √ 
  Agreed at Cabinet 

That opportunities for funding drug prevention education 
programmes be explored. 
 
Community Safety Manager to report back to OSCOM on 20 
March 2019 in the outcome of the Community Safety 
Management Group deliberations. 

 

 

 

Public Involvement Panel Final Report on 17 October 2018 

 Agreed Start Date Progress Update Completion 
date 

Recommendation 

 

OSCOM 

17.10.18 

Cabinet 

7.11.18 

Council 

 

   

That the proposed action plan 
emanating from the Public 
Involvement Review be endorsed 
ready for onward submission to 
Cabinet. 
 

√ √ 
  Agreed at Cabinet 

That the proposed action plan emanating from the Public 
Involvement Review be endorsed. 

 

Call for progress report in February 2020 

 

 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 20 M
arch 2019

P
age 63


	Agenda
	9 Opportunities for Funding Drug Prevention Education Programmes
	Text1
	Opportunities for Funding Drug Prevention Education Programmes - Annex

	10 Corporate Plan 2019-2023
	Text1
	Corporate Plan 2019-2023 - Annex

	11 Report of the Task and Finish panel - Car Parking
	Text1
	Report of the Task and Finish Panel – Car Parking Annex

	12 Work Programme Report
	Work Programme - Annex 1
	Work Programme - Annex 2
	Work Programme - Annex 3
	Work Programme Annex 4


